
 
Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk 

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and 
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 843579 or by emailing 

democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

Agenda 
Standing Advisory Council on 
Religious Education 
 
Tuesday, 3 October 2017, 2.00 pm 
County Hall, Worcester 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 



 

Agenda produced and published by Simon Mallinson, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall, 
Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact Kate Griffiths, Committee Officer on 01905 
846630, KGriffiths@Worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website.  
 
Date of Issue: Friday, 22 September 2017 

 
 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
Tuesday, 3 October 2017, 2.00 pm, County Hall, Worcester 
 
Membership:   

 
Group A (Representatives of Christian and other faiths) 
Mrs L Thorne (Ba'hai - Chairman), Mr G Bounds (Free Church Representative), Mrs T Khawaja 
(Muslim Representative), Mrs C Parker (Methodist Representative) and Dr Y Stollard (Jewish 
Representative) 
 
Group B (Church of England Representatives) 
Ms S Boulter (Church of England), Mrs T Lister (Church of England) and Ms K Poole (Church 
of England) 
 
 
Group C (Representatives of Recognised Teachers Associations) 
Charlotte Betteridge (NASUWT) and Mr C Giles (Teacher Representative)  
 
Group D (Elected representatives of the Local Authority) 
Mr M E Jenkins (Worcestershire County Council) and Mr R C Lunn (Worcestershire County 
Council) 
 
Co-opted Representatives 
Ms E Hill (University of Worcester) and Ms A Hooper (Humanist Representative) 
 

Agenda 
 

Item No Subject Page No 
 

1  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 
 

 

2  Confirmation of the Minutes 
For the meeting of 9 June 2017. 
 

1 - 4 

3  SACRE Development Plan 
Members are asked to consider the Development Plan to see what 
actions are required to fulfil the functions of SACRE. 
 

5 - 10 

4  Evidence of quality RE and SMSC in Worcestershire- an analysis of 
Ofsted reports 
To receive further information from Ellie Hill. 
 

 

5  Visits to places of worship  



Item No Subject Page No 
 

 

To receive feedback from South Bromsgrove's Places of Worship Visit 
from Chris Giles.  
Information regarding the Visits list from Tracy Lister. 
 

6  Hub Leaders project 
To receive an update from Stephen Pett. 
 

 

7  Conferences 
a) To receive feedback from the 2017 conferences from Chris Giles 

and Stephen Pett. 
 

b) Planning for 2018 conferences. 
 

11 - 14 

8  National RE 
 
The Commission on RE Interim Report – and its executive summary 
can be downloaded at: http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/religious-
education-for-all-commission-interim-report/  
 
NATRE and the REC’s ‘State of the Nation’ Report that hit the 
headlines last weekend can be downloaded from 
https://www.natre.org.uk/news/latest-news/800-000-secondary-pupils-
lose-out-on-religious-literacy/  
 
The direct link to the report is at 
https://www.natre.org.uk/uploads/Free%20Resources/SOTN%20RE%20
2017%20Report%20web%20v4.pdf  
 

 

9  Feedback from Members 
A chance for Members to bring news or updates from their communities 
to share with SACRE. 
 

 

10  Any Other Business 
 

 

11  Future Meeting Dates 
The meeting dates for 2018 are: 
 

 Wednesday 14 February 2018 

 Tuesday 15 May 2018 

 Tuesday 2 October 2018 
 

 

 

http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/religious-education-for-all-commission-interim-report/
http://www.commissiononre.org.uk/religious-education-for-all-commission-interim-report/
https://www.natre.org.uk/news/latest-news/800-000-secondary-pupils-lose-out-on-religious-literacy/
https://www.natre.org.uk/news/latest-news/800-000-secondary-pupils-lose-out-on-religious-literacy/
https://www.natre.org.uk/uploads/Free%20Resources/SOTN%20RE%202017%20Report%20web%20v4.pdf
https://www.natre.org.uk/uploads/Free%20Resources/SOTN%20RE%202017%20Report%20web%20v4.pdf


 
 

 
  

 
 Page No.   
 

1 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
Friday, 9 June 2017, County Hall, Worcester - 2.00 pm 
 
 Minutes  

Present:   Mrs Lindsay Thorne (Chairman), Mr Robin Lunn (Vice-
Chairman), Mr Chris Giles, Ms Ellie Hill, Mr M Jenkins, 
Mrs Tasnim Khawaja, Mrs Tracy Lister,  Mrs Christine 
Parker and Dr Yvonne Stollard. 
 

Also attended: Mr S Pett, RE Today - Adviser to SACRE 
Kate Griffiths – Democratic Services 

  

585  Apologies for 
Absence and 
Substitutions 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Charlotte 
Betteridge, Stephanie Boulter, Graham Bounds and 
Kerry Poole. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Matthew Jenkins to his first 
SACRE meeting. He was a Councillor and had therefore 
become a member of Group D. 
 
The SACRE agreed to send a letter to Ian Hopwood to 
thank him for all his hard work for the Advisory Council 
over the previous four years. 
 

586  Declaration of 
Interests 
 

None 
 

587  Appointment of 
a Vice Chairman 
 

Following the election the position of Vice Chairman had 
become vacant. 
 
Robin Lunn was nominated and seconded for the 
position. 
There were no further nominations and no objections so 
Robin Lunn was duly appointed Vice Chairman of 
SACRE. 
 
 

588  Confirmation of 
the Minutes 
 

The minutes were agreed to be a correct record of the 
previous meeting on 1 February 2017 but under minute 
578 a revised description of the Understanding 
Christianity resource was suggested of it being a 
'substantial resource'. 
 

589  SACRE 
Development 
Plan 
 

As funding for SACRE had been secured until 20 
September 2020 and a contract had been agreed with 
RE Services for Stephen Pett to remain as SACRE 
advisor it was deemed a good idea to create a 
Development Plan. 

Page 1



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

2 

 
A draft development plan was circulated.  
 
An updated version of the plan is attached to these 
minutes. 
 
 
 

590  Hub Leaders 
Project 
 

It had been hoped that the project would have started in 
May, however the University was supporting the project 
and they had a rigorous ethical procedure and the Ethics 
Board had requested 3 minor changes to the project 
plan. Ethics approval was necessary before the project 
could start and would enable the University to use the 
work done as part of its research with the possibility of 
the project being rolled out to other areas or extending its 
impact with further funding. 
 
The Project would now be launched in the Autumn Term. 
 

591  Conferences 
2017 
 

The Primary Conference would take place on 19 June. 
 
The Secondary Conference was being organised with 
South Bromsgrove school and would include 
Herefordshire schools, it would take place on 29 June. 
 

592  Visits to Places 
of Worship 
 

Tracy Lister had agreed to compile a list of places of 
worship which could be visited by schools. This would be 
a useful resource for Schools who currently have to rely 
on internet searches for information on places to visit. 
 
SACRE members were asked to approach their contacts 
and return any information to Tracy. 
It was also agreed that teachers who attend the 
conferences would be asked for their recommendations.  
 
The Faith Encounter programme was mentioned. Faith 
guides are trained to show people round their places of 
worship. Also some people are prepared to go into 
schools to speak about their religion. 
 
South Bromsgrove had held a trip to places of worship in 
Birmingham. The students would be asked if they could 
come to speak to SACRE about their visit.  
 

593  RE Council / 
NASACRE 
Update 
 

Stephen agreed to return responses to NASACRE's 
survey as well as the REC Commission on the provision 
of RE. 
 

594  National RE Stephen distributed information about RE films from the 

Page 2



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

3 

Update 
 

BBC and media coverage about parent's rights to 
withdraw their children from RE lessons. 
 
 

595  Feedback from 
Members 
 

The Chairman gave members some information about 
the RE Council Meeting which had taken place on 11 
May 2017. 
 

596  Any Other 
Business 
 

None 
 

597  Future Meeting 
Dates 
 

The next meeting will be held on Tuesday 3 October 
2017 at 2pm in the Lakeview Room at County Hall. 
 

 
 
 
 The meeting ended at 4.05pm. 
 
 
 
 
 Chairman ……………………………………………. 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Worcestershire SACRE Development Plan 2017-2020 Draft 1 

Worcestershire 
Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 

 
Draft Development Plan 2017-2020 

 
 

 

The functions of SACRE1  
 
The key function of SACRE is to advise the Local Authority on RE in accordance with the agreed 
syllabus.2  This includes: 
 

1.  Monitoring the provision and quality of RE, and providing advice and support on the 
effective teaching of RE in accordance with the agreed syllabus.  This includes advice on  

methods of teaching 
choice of teaching material 
provision of teacher training 

 
2.  Monitoring the effectiveness of the agreed syllabus, including whether any changes need 
to be made to improve the quality of teaching and learning in RE, whether in the syllabus 
itself or the support offered in implementing the syllabus.  Central to this is the review of the 
locally agreed syllabus within five years of the last review. 
 
3.  Maintaining a partnership between SACRE, LA and other bodies.  This includes preparing 
an annual report.  
 
4.  Handling applications for determinations from ‘wholly or mainly Christian’ acts of 
collective worship.   
 
5.  Monitoring the contribution of SACRE to the promotion of SMSC. 

 
 
This development plan relates to these five key aspects of the work of Worcestershire SACRE. 
 

                                                           
1
 Religious Education in English Schools, DCSF 2010  

2
 Section 391(1)(a), Education Act 1996 

Page 5



 

Worcestershire SACRE Development Plan 2017-2020 Draft 1 

1. Supporting and monitoring teaching and learning in RE 
Action Timescale Lead responsibility Progress and evaluation 

Supporting improvement     

 To run a Hub Leaders training programme  Termly 2017-2018 SACRE / RE adviser / 
University of 
Worcester / Diocese 

Full participation over 3.5 days by 10 teachers, 
half CE, half community schools. 

 To enable a programme of RE teacher network 
meetings for primary teachers, set up and run 
regionally by local Hub Leaders. 

Twice a year SACRE / RE adviser / 
Hub leaders 

At least four regional network meetings, twice a 
year; with increasing numbers of participants, 
evaluations giving satisfaction rates of over 95% 

 To offer an annual SACRE conference for primary 
teachers to raise standards of teaching and learning; 
involve Hub leaders where possible 

Annually SACRE / RE adviser Maintain high attendance rates and evaluations 
giving satisfaction rates of over 95% 

 To support an annual SACRE conference for 
secondary teachers, combining with local Teaching 
School and Hereford SACRE 

Annually SACRE / RE adviser / 
Specialist Leader in 
Education 

Increasing numbers of participants, with 
evaluations giving satisfaction rates of over 95% 

 To run two day courses for special schools, from 
Worcestershire and surrounding counties, 
supporting their planning and provision for RE 

Spring 2018/Autumn 
2019 

RE Adviser Day courses run with attendance from at least 
50% Worcestershire schools, over 95% 
satisfaction in feedback 

Monitoring standards    

 To receive reports from RE teacher network 
meetings 

SACRE meetings  RE Adviser / SLE / 
Diocesan advisers 

Reports demonstrate a coherent and effective 
programme of support, with increasingly active 
involvement from teachers. 

 Analysis of evaluation/feedback from courses, 
network meetings and annual SACRE conference 

As appropriate RE adviser Record advice from teachers and report to 
SACRE.  Provision of support to show that 
account has been taken of this feedback. 

 Analysis of school inspection reports from SIAMS 
and any relevant feedback in Ofsted reports 

 

Primary – autumn mtg 
Secondary – spring 
mtg 

RE adviser / Uni of 
Worcs/ Diocesan 
officer 

Reports give a clear analysis of the achievements, 
trends and areas to address. 

 To receive a report from the C of E and RC Dioceses 
outlining developments relating to RE in church 
schools in Worcestershire 

 

Summer annually Chair of CE 
committee/ 
Diocesan officers 

Report presented and informs SACRE members of 
the activities planned and completed. 

 To utilise other means of monitoring RE in schools, 
including visits to schools and online survey 

From Summer 2018 SACRE strategy 
group / RE adviser 

Additional means of monitoring RE available to 
complement inspection findings. 

P
age 6



 

Worcestershire SACRE Development Plan 2017-2020 Draft 1 

2.  Monitoring and review of Worcestershire agreed syllabus 
 

Action Timescale Lead responsibility Progress and evaluation 

 To support schools in the implementation of the 
2015 agreed syllabus through a programme of 
activities including courses, network meetings and 
resource development (see Hub Leaders and 
network meetings above) 

 

Summer 2017 
On-going 

SACRE / RE adviser Evaluations giving satisfaction rates of over 95%. 

 To monitor the implementation of the 2015 agreed 
syllabus using an online survey 

Autumn 2017 SACRE / RE adviser Feedback from schools gathered, evaluated and 
reported on, with a satisfaction rate of 90% good 
or better. 

 

P
age 7



 

Worcestershire SACRE Development Plan 2017-2020 Draft 1 

3.  Partnership between SACRE, the Local Authority and other bodies 
 

Action Timescale Lead Responsibility Progress and evaluation 

Local Authority/Babcock     

 To receive presentations from LA officers relating to 
local and national initiatives which have an impact 
on teaching and learning in RE 

As required LA officer / SACRE 
member to identify 
need 

SACRE members’ evaluation and feedback.  Where 
appropriate, impact seen in RE support and 
training. 

Faith communities    

 To develop and maintain guidance for schools on 
Visits and Visitors in RE 

 To promote and support school involvement with 
Interfaith/National Faith Week in autumn term  

Autumn annually 
 
Autumn 2018 

RE adviser / SLE / 
Diocesan officers  
 

Amendments and additions added to Visits and 
Visitors Guidance online. 

Schools    

 To continue a programme of presentations to SACRE 
by teachers exemplifying good practice  

On-going RE adviser /Diocesan 
adviser 

Programme of presentations continues with 
minimum of one presentation per year. 

 Develop effective methods of communicating with 
schools to encourage participation in network 
groups, conferences etc, including email list and use 
of local newsletters online  

On-going SACRE / RE adviser Feedback from teachers about best ways to 
receive information; accurate email contacts list 
updated regularly 

National bodies    

 To produce an annual report   
 

Autumn RE adviser Report completed, agreed by SACRE and sent to 
NASACRE and DfE for January each year 

 To liaise with the National Association of SACREs 
(NASACRE), the RE Council, National Association of 
Teachers of RE (NATRE) and other relevant 
organisations in raising issues relating to RE and 
collective worship at a national level. 

On-going SACRE members Ensure representative attendance at annual 
conference where appropriate. 

 

P
age 8



 

Worcestershire SACRE Development Plan 2017-2020 Draft 1 

4.  Collective worship in county schools 
 

Action Timescale Lead responsibility Progress and evaluation 

 

 Handling applications for determinations from 
collective worship 

 
As and when 
applications received 

 
SACRE 

 
Determinations successfully resolved 
 

 

 5.  Monitoring the contribution of SACRE to the promotion of SMSC 
 

Action Timescale Lead responsibility Progress and evaluation 

 

 Arrange one SACRE meeting a year to be held at a 
school or faith venue 
 

 
On-going 

 
SACRE strategy 
group 

 
Programme of visits under way with appropriate 
levels of attendance  

 To receive presentations from faith communities 
represented in Worcestershire 
 

On-going SACRE Programme of presentations under way 

 
  
 
 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



On 29th June 2017 the GCSE RE Conference at Grafton Manor, organised by South 
Bromsgrove High Teaching School, supported by REToday, NATRE, local SACREs and 
Worcester University, provided CPD for over 80 attendees with the aim of bringing the new 
RE to life. Speakers Kate Christopher, Stephen Pett and Razwan Ul-Haq along with faith 
experts Sushma Shajpal, Chris Hewer, Gerry Cohen, Waqar Ahmedi and the Venerable 
Tenzin Choesan answered teachers’ questions on the new GCSE specification.  Other 
highlights of the day included networking and a Teach Meet where teachers shared ideas.  
Some twitter responses on the day were:  

 
Brilliant keynote by @sfpett on ways to get kids interested in 

texts. What a story is called has an impact on how it is read. 

#REtolife17 

 
 

Discussing #Islamophobia and how to deal with it 

when teaching #re #REtolife17 @ethicsgrrrl (Kate 

Christopher) @Islamic_Artist (Razwan Ul-Haq)  

 
 

Such a privilege to have the esteemed Dr.Chris Hewer 

speaking on Islam content and methodology. #REtolife17 

@NATREupdate @RE_Today  

 

So thankful to have @KosherCrooner (Gerry Cohen) sharing 

his knowledge and heart on Judaism great insights on the 

new syllabus. #REtolife17 @RE_Today 

 

 
 
 
South 
Bromsgrove 
High 
Teaching 
School is 

hoping to provide further CPD this year for RE teachers.  

Feedback from the Conference:  

Page 11

https://twitter.com/sfpett
https://twitter.com/hashtag/REtolife17?src=hash
https://twitter.com/hashtag/Islamophobia?src=hash
https://twitter.com/hashtag/re?src=hash
https://twitter.com/hashtag/REtolife17?src=hash
https://twitter.com/ethicsgrrrl
https://twitter.com/Islamic_Artist
https://twitter.com/hashtag/REtolife17?src=hash
https://twitter.com/NATREupdate
https://twitter.com/RE_Today
https://twitter.com/KosherCrooner
https://twitter.com/hashtag/REtolife17?src=hash
https://twitter.com/RE_Today


 
Evaluation forms highlighted what delegates… 
 
Enjoyed: 

 Meeting colleagues and sharing ideas 

 Expertise of the speakers  

 Insights into the new GCSE course to develop resources.  

 Getting interesting ideas 

 They were inspired to do more trips 

 The Teach Meet 
 
Would have liked: 
 

 More time on the Teachmeet 

 More time to network 

 More time with the faith experts 

 Bit of a mixed response on faith expert sessions – Islam in particular would have been 
better if it hadn’t had been split between 2 people.  

 
What they want to see covered at next conference: 
 

 Marking and moderation 

 A-Level 

 GCSE Assessment 

 KS3 

 Transition from KS2 – KS3 

 A-Level expertise, especially on religious issues, e.g., Christianity 

 
EVALUATION SHEETS Scale of 1 to 4, 1 = High Score and 4 = Low 

All figures are in percentages. 2% represents approximately 1 person. 
 

 1 (High) 2 3 4 (Low) 

Keynote 1: Brining the new 
RE GCSE to Life.  

74 22 4  

Keynote 2: Teaching Islam & 
Handling Difficult Issues 

70 22 8  

Workshop: Meet the faith 
experts 

78 14 8 2 (Due to 1 workshop leader not 
turning up) 

Keynote 3: Getting Pupils 
into Texts 

80 12 8  

Teach Meet 82 16  
 

 

How useful did you find the 
conference overall?  

90 8 2  

  

Page 12



“All keynote speakers were excellent, good strategies and ideas for the classroom.  Getting 
pupils into sacred texts was helping when thinking of deeper engagement and in a cross 
curricular nature.”   
  
“I thought the day was fantastic and I have been inspired by the teaching ideas shown. I 
have also sourced some of the wonderful resources shown to us and so it has had a direct 
impact on my knowledge and teaching.”  
 
“Tips for the new GCSE teaching and ensuring academic rigour”   
 
“Being able to meet the experts, I would have love to carried on our discussions, really 
interesting”  
 
“Bringing the new RS GCSE to life, meeting other colleagues, sharing some interesting ideas 
and thinking outside of the box”   
 
“Excellent talk from Dr.Chris Hewer answering our incisive question eloquently and brilliant 
ideas shared during the TeachMeet”  
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Confirmation of the Minutes
	3 SACRE Development Plan
	7 Conferences

